
 

 

 
 

CITY OF POINT PLEASANT 
MASON COUNTY, WEST VIRGINIA 

 
POINT PLEASANT RIVER MUSEUM 
POINT PLEASANT, WEST VIRGINIA 

THRASHER PROJECT #060-10152 
 

ADDENDUM #1 
 November 05, 2020  
 
Prospective Bidders: 
 
This Addendum forms a part of the Contract Documents and modifies the original Bidding 
Documents dated October 23, 2020.  Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided 
on the Bid Form.  Failure to do so may subject the Bidder to disqualification. 
 
A non-mandatory Pre-Bid Conference was held at the project site located in Point Pleasant, West 
Virginia, on November 02, 2020 at 10:00am., L.P.T. The Attendance List is attached to this 
Addendum. 

 
GENERAL: 
1. The Pre-Bid Sign-In Sheet and Agenda are included with this Addendum. 
2. All questions to be addressed by addendum must be submitted via email by 4:00 p.m. on 

Thursday, November 12, 2020.  Please submit questions to the following: 
 lprovidenti@thethrashergroup.com; 
 jlyons@thethrashergroup.com.   

3. Contractors are responsible for reviewing the entire set of documents. 
4. Questions received directly from subcontractors will not be accepted or addressed via 

addendum.  Subcontractors must have one of the General Contractors submit questions on 
their behalf. 

5. Bids will only be accepted from General Contractors for the full scope of work. 
6. No substitution requests will be accepted during bidding.  Substitution requests for 

convenience will be accepted for a period of 60 days following the Notice to Proceed given 
to the awarded Contractor per specification section 012500 Substitution Procedures.  

7. Bids are due Friday, November 20, 2020 at 1:00 pm to the City of Point Pleasant at the 
City Offices, 400 Viand Street, Point Pleasant, West Virginia. 

mailto:lprovidenti@thethrashergroup.com
mailto:jlyons@thethrashergroup.com
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8. There is a building permit required for the project.  The permit fee schedule is attached to 
this addendum.  

9. The Owner’s budget for construction is $2,000,000.00. 
 
CHANGES TO SPECIFICATIONS:   
1. 102239 FOLDING PANEL PARTITIONS – Delete items 2.6.B Work Surfaces and 2.6.C 

Chalk Tray. 
 
CHANGES TO DRAWINGS:   
1. Sheet A7.01 – Revise room SUPPORT 204 to be vinyl tile. 
2. Sheet A5.01: 3/A5.01 – Remove 15/32” 25 GA. Furring Channel from detail in Type 4 

wall construction. Revise overall width to 4-7/8” 
 
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS: 
Q-01) Is there a requirement for a fire rated access hatch in Room 206 JC? 
A-01) Yes, provide fire-rated access hatch in JC 206 ceiling. 

 
Q-02) Within the limit of painted exposed structure, is there a requirement to paint all exposed 

Structural Steel, Steel Joist Framing, Metal Decking, Fire Suppression Piping, Gas 
Piping, Plumbing Piping exposed or Plumbing Piping Insulated, Ductwork, Electrical 
Conduits and Junction Boxes, etc.?  If painting of all MEP materials is required, will each 
MEP be painted a different color or will the MEP materials be painted to match the 
Structural Steel, Steel Joist Framing & Metal Decking? 

A-02) In all areas with exposed structure, all elements shall be painted a single solid color 
(blacked out) above the level of the lowest exposed element, excluding light fixtures.   
 

Q-03) Review snapshot below Sheet A7.01.  Could further clarification or detail be provided? 
A-03) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum.   

 
Q-04) What type floor finish is in the elevator cab? 
A-04) Provide vinyl tile in elevator cab. 

 
Q-05) Review attached screen shot of the area where VCT meets sealed concrete in rooms 203 

and 205.  Please provide a transition detail. 
A-05) Demounted partitions in this space will be installed by Owner after construction.  Rooms 

203, 204, and 205 shall be treated as a single space.  Provide vinyl tile throughout.   
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Q-06) The following rooms number 106, 108, 200, 202, 204, & 206 does not include resilient 
base & accessories.  What product is to be installed? 

A-06) Provide flooring and base per the room finish schedule on sheet A6.01, except as 
modified in A-05) above.  Where finish is indicated to be SEALED CONC., no floor 
covering shall be provided. 

 
Q-07) The following room numbers 106, 108, 200, 202, 204, & 206 & S1 indicate the floor 

finish to be sealed concrete.  The concrete specifications nor painting specifications 
indicate what type of finish.  Could a specification be provided for Sealed Concrete as 
noted on Sheet A6.01 Room Finish Schedule? 

A-07) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-08) The Room Finish Schedule indicates all walls to receive one of the following:  
Storefront/PT'D GWB, PT'D GWB or PT'D CMU.  The Room Finish Schedule does not 
indicate installing tiling on any of the walls, however, when reviewing Sheet A4.01 
Enlarged Plan Views & Interior Elevations, tiling is identified.  Which Plan Sheet 
supersedes the other?  

A-08) No plan sheets are intended to supersede any others.  The portions of wall indicated to 
receive tile on sheet A4.01 shall receive tile.  The portions not indicated to receive tile, 
shall receive the finish indicated in the Room Finish Schedule.  For clarity, the extent of 
tile shall be 5’-0” AFF in all locations.  In rooms 104 and 105, tile shall be provided the 
full width of the North wall, and the full depth of the partition on the East and West wall.  
Provide tile in other restrooms as indicated on sheet A4.01 

 
Q-09) Review the metal pan stairs finishing specification below: 

 2.9           FINISHES 
 A.        Finish metal stairs after assembly. 
 B.        Preparation for Shop Priming: Prepare uncoated, ferrous-metal surfaces to comply 

with SSPC- SP 3, "Power Tool Cleaning." 
 C.        Apply shop primer   to uncoated surfaces of   metal   stair   components,  except  

those   with galvanized  finishes  and  those  to  be  embedded  in  concrete  or  
masonry  unless otherwise indicated. Comply with SSPC-PA 1, "Paint  
Application Specification No. 1:  Shop, Field, and Maintenance Painting of 
Steel," for shop painting. 
The finish schedule does not indicate to paint all components of the metal pan 
stair assembly, including wall mounted railing.  Will finish coats to the metal pan 
stair assembly and wall mounted railing be required? 

A-09) Yes, all components of the metal pan stair assembly and wall mounted railings shall be 
finish painted.  Contractor’s option for shop finish painting or field finish painting. 
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Q-10) Review the metal grating stairs finishing below: 
 2.8           FINISHES 
 A.        Finish metal stairs after assembly. 
 B.       Galvanizing:  Hot-dip  galvanize  items  as  indicated  to  comply  with  ASTM 

A153/A153M  for steel and iron hardware and with ASTM A123/A123M for 
other steel and iron products. 

 1.       Do  not  quench  or  apply  post-galvanizing  treatments  that  might  
interfere  with  paint adhesion. 

2.       Fill vent and drain holes that are exposed in the finished Work, unless 
indicated to remain as weep holes, by plugging with zinc solder and filing 
off smooth. 

 C.        Preparation for Shop Priming: Prepare uncoated ferrous-metal surfaces to comply 
with SSPC-SP 6/NACE No. 3, "Commercial Blast Cleaning." 

 D.        Apply  shop  primer   to  uncoated  surfaces  of   metal   stair   components,  
except  those   with galvanized  finishes  and  those  to  be  embedded  in  concrete  
or  masonry  unless otherwise indicated. Comply with SSPC-PA 1, "Paint  
Application Specification No. 1:  Shop, Field, and Maintenance Painting of 
Steel," for shop painting. 

 1.       Stripe paint corners, crevices, bolts, welds, and sharp edges. 
  There are no plan notes as to what the finish of the metal grating stair 

assembly should be.  Could further information be provided as to what the 
intent of the finish shall be on the metal grating stairs? 

A-10) Metal grating stairs shall be finish painted.  Contractor’s option to shop finish paint or 
field finish paint. 

 
Q-11) Is there a specification for the solid surface window sills? 
A-11) Solid surface windowsills shall be from same manufacturer and of same quality as 

specified in section 123661.16 Solid Surfacing Countertops.  Thickness as indicated in 
window details on A5.04.  Width shall be full width of window.  Depth varies depending 
on window location and wall construction, but all sills shall overhang finished wall by 1” 
as indicated on sheet A5.04. 

 
Q-12) On Sheet A2.01 Exterior Elevations; Note E7.  Who provides and installs the building 

plaque and could specifications be provide in order to prepare the substrate for mounting? 
A-12) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
 
 



  Addendum No. 1 
  November 05, 2020 
  Page 5 of 16 
 

 
 

Q-13) On Sheet A2.01 Exterior Building Elevations; Note E8.  Who provides and installs the 
building signage and could specifications be provided in order to prepare the substrate for 
mounting? 

A-13) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-14) Refer to Specification Section 101423.16 Signage and Graphics: 
 3.4         INTERIOR SIGNAGE SCHEDULE 
 A.       Refer to the list of interior signs required for the project as attached to this Section. 

Could a signage schedule be provided? 
A-14) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-15) Refer to Specification Section 101423.16 Signage and Graphics: 

1.2         RELATED SECTIONS 
 A.       Section 10410 - Directories. 
 B.       Section 10420 - Plaques. 
 C.       Section 10430 - Exterior Signage. 
 Where are these specification? 

A-15) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-16) Refer to Specification Section 102113.19 Plastic Toilet Compartments 
 2.2           SOLID-PLASTIC TOILET COMPARTMENTS 
 A.       Basis of Design: Scranton Products Aria Partitions 
 Did not see comment pertaining to other Manufacturer's as approved "or equal".  

Will other plastic toilet compartment manufacturer's be accepted, such as General 
Partitions, All American Corp, Ampco Products, Inpro, Metpa Corp, Partition 
Systems International? 

A-16) Substitution requests are not being accepted during bidding.  See General statements 
above for clarification on substitutions.  Other manufacturers may be considered, but 
substitution requests are not guaranteed to be accepted.  To the Architect’s knowledge at 
the time of this addendum, the named manufacturer is the only one that complies with the 
full-height partition requirements.   

 
Q-17) Refer to Specification Section Solid Surfacing Countertops 123661.16: 

 2.1           SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP MATERIALS 
 A.        Solid Surface Material: Homogeneous-filled plastic resin complying with ICPA 

SS-1. 
 1.       Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide products 

by one of the following: 
a.        Avonite Surfaces. 
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b.       E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company. 
c.        Formica Corporation. 

 d.       Samsung Chemical USA, Inc. 
 May Wilsonart be accepted as an approved manufacturer? 

A-17) Substitution requests are not being accepted during bidding.  See General statements 
above for clarification on substitutions. 

 
Q-18) Refer to Specification Section Machine Room-Less Electric Transaction Passenger 

Elevators 14123.16. 
 Will the following be acceptable manufacturers? 
 a.  Thyssen krupp 

b.  Dover 
c.  Otis 
d.  West Virginia Elevator 
e.  DC Elevator 

A-18) Substitution requests are not being accepted during bidding.  See General statements 
above for clarification on substitutions.  The shaft was designed to accommodate the 
Basis of Design elevator.  The cost for any modifications to shaft dimensions and any 
subsequent design changes required to accommodate an alternate manufacturer’s product 
shall be borne by the Contractor per the requirements of section 012500 Substitution 
Procedures. 

 
Q-19) Refer to Masonry Veneer 042613 Specifications.  White sand and white mortar is very 

expensive compared to other products.  Will white mortar and white sand need to be 
considered during the bidding phase? 

A-19) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-20) Refer to Specification Section Bituminous Damproofing 077113 and Note 2 on Sheet 
3.02 & A3.03: The note indicates to install full height of the wall, review attached 
product data sheet for R-Guard being requested as an approved "or equal". 

A-20) Substitution requests are not being accepted during bidding.  See General statements 
above for clarification on substitutions. 
 

Q-21) Refer to Specification Section Self-Adhering Waterproofing 071326: Is this specification 
section for the elevator pit only or does the specification apply to the entire perimeter 
foundation wall as well? 

A-21) This specification applies to the elevator pit only. 
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Q-22) Refer to Sheet A2.01 Exterior Elevations: Will painting of the roof access ladder and 
safety cage be required? 

A-22) Finish shall be painted galvanized steel.  Contractor’s options for shop finish painting, or 
field finish painting. 

 
Q-23) Will a ladder be required in the elevator pit and will the ladder require finish paint? 
A-23) Yes, a ladder shall be required in the elevator pit.  Ladder shall be finish painted 

galvanized steel.  Contractor’s option for shop finish painting or field finish painting. 
 

Q-24) Will nelson studs be required to be welded to the structure steel prior to deck placement 
and concrete pours within the second floor suspended concrete on decking? 

A-24) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-25) Will welded wire mesh actually be required within the suspend concrete on metal deck as 
indicated on Sheet S300? 

A-25) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-26) What is the camber and/or deflection rate design of the steel joist framing for the second 
floor concrete and metal deck?  Will shoring for the concrete pour be required due to the 
span? 

A-26) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-27) Was the steel joist framing, metal decking and concrete designed strong enough to carry 
ride along trowel machines for concrete finishing and scissor lifts for construction 
activities? 

A-27) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-28) Refer to Specification Section Folding Panel Partitions 102239: May Kwik-Wall be 
considered as an acceptable manufacturer? 

A-28) Substitution requests are not being accepted during bidding.  See General statements 
above for clarification on substitutions. 

 
Q-29) 29. Refer to Specification Section Manufactured Plastic-Laminate-Clad Casework 

123216: May Architectural Interior Products, Inc (dba Top Shop) be considered as an 
acceptable manufacturer? 

A-29) Substitution requests are not being accepted during bidding.  See General statements 
above for clarification on substitutions. 
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Q-30) Refer to Specification Section Roller Window Shades 122413: 
 A.  Are shades to be installed at window openings tagged 11, 12 & 13 only? 
 B.  Are shades required at SF1, SF2, SF3 & SF4? 

A-30) Yes, shades shall only be provided at window openings tagged 11, 12, & 13.  No shades 
shall be provided at any storefront framing. 

Q-31) Refer to Specification Section Resilient Tile Flooring 096519: May Azrock be considered 
as an acceptable manufacturer? 

A-31) Substitution requests are not being accepted during bidding.  See General statements 
above for clarification on substitutions. 

 
Q-32) Refer to Specification Section Acoustical Panel Ceilings 095113: 

 2.2     ACOUSTICAL PANELS  
 A.       Manufacturers:  Subject  to  compliance  with  requirements,  provide  products  by  

one  of  the following: 
 1.       Armstrong World Industries, Inc. 
 2.       CertainTeed Corporation. 

 B.       Acoustical Panel Standard: Manufacturer's standard panels according to ASTM E 
1264. 

 C.       Classification: Type XII, Form 2, Pattern E or G. 
 D.       Color:  As selected from manufacturer's full range. 

E.       Light Reflectance (LR): 0.90 for white panels only. 
F.       Sabins: Minimum 3.5 sabins/panel. 
G.       Edge/Joint Detail:  Square. 
H.       Thickness:  1-1/2 inches minimum. Is this correct? 
I.        Modular Size: Minimum 24 inches by 24 inches. 

A-32) Basis of Design ceiling tile is Armstrong Ultima 1910.  Type IV, Form 2, Pattern E.  
Dimensions shall be 24” x 24” x 3/4”. 

 
Q-33) Should the wet wall at the drinking fountain between doors 104 and 105 be a 6" or 8" 

metal stud in order to accommodate the plumbing rough-ins? 
A-33) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-34) Referring to Gas Piping from the meter up the side of the exterior building to HVAC on 

the roof: Is the Mechanical Engineer requiring all gas piping to be welded pipe? 
A-34) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-35) Will the Owner be providing the work order for the gas connection with the local utility 

company? 
A-35) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
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Q-36) Has the WVDOH Permit for the Type F Trench Repair at the drain connection crossing 

Main Street been established? 
A-36) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-37) F.F.E has been set to 560.90. What is the top and bottom curb elevations on Main Street?  
A-37) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-38) Where is the bench mark located?  Can the stakes and elevations be provided from the 

preliminary investigative survey provided during the design phase? 
A-38) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-39) Has the proposed F.F.E. been set to allow for proper slopes for WVDOH & ADA cross 

slopes specifications of concrete sidewalks? 
A-39) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-40) Regarding the brick paver note on Sheet C1.01: Could a detail be provided should a 

concrete curb be needed for the brick pavers? Could a section detail be provided 
indicating the minimum thickness of gravel bedding and what type of sands may be 
required for brick paving installations? What price range of brick pavers should be 
quoted. Low end brick paver or premium brick paver? 

A-40) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-41) Refer to Sheet C1.01 Over Legend and Over-All Site Plan C1.01:  The existing contour 
lines are hard to distinguish amongst all the information being plotted on one plan sheet. 
What is the limits of Earth Moving? Is the site balanced? Do existing foundations remain 
in place? 

A-41) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-42) If unsuitable materials are encountered, will the Site Contractor be paid on a CY Unit of 
Measure for over excavation and placement of compacted suitable materials? 

A-42) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
  

Q-43) Refer to Foundation Note # 1 on Sheet S001 snap shot: Will the geo-tech reports be 
provided by American Geotech and issued in the Addendum? Conflicting statements: Is 
the Geotech report for recommendation use for the Structural Engineer and the General 
Contractor shall bid as per Structural Drawings & Technical Specifications or are the 
directions within the reports to be included in the bid? Should ground water or unsuitable 
earth not meeting the minimum 2,000 PSF be encountered. Will there be a pay item for 
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dewatering and a pay item for removal of unsuitable material and replacement with 
engineered fill? 

A-43) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-44) Sheet C1.01 Site Plan: The limits of disturbance are not identified. Is CMU Properties, 
LLC Parcel 23 available for staging? 

A-44) This is being discussed with the Owner and will be addressed in a subsequent Addendum. 
 

Q-45) Refer to Construction Means & Methods Note 1: 
 CONSTRUCTION MEANS AND METHODS 
 1.  Contractor agrees that Contractor shall assume sole and complete responsibility 

for job site conditions during the course of the Work, including safely of all 
persons and property; that this requirement shall apply continuously and not be 
limited to normal working hours; and that Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and 
hold Owner and Structural Engineer harmless from any and all liability, real or 
alleged, in connection with the performance of the Work on this Project, 
excepting for liability arising from the sole negligence of Owner or Structural 
Engineer. 

 The drawings do not indicate to install any type of chain-link fencing around the 
limits of disturbance. Is it in the best interest of all parties to include a 6 foot tall 
temporary chain link fence with entrance gate to the construction site or is orange 
plastic construction fence acceptable? 

A-45) Contractor shall provide and install Site Enclosure Fence as required in section 015000 
Temporary Facilities and Controls. 

 
Q-46) Refer to Sheet A3.02 Note: 34 4" PERF. FOOTING DRAIN WRAPPED IN 

GEOTEXTILE AND SURROUNDED BY CLEAN STONE FILL.  SEE 'C' SHEETS 
FOR CONTINUATION AND TIE-IN.  Where is the tie-in for the foundation drainage 
piping? 

A-46) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-47) Refer to Sheets P1.01 Notes A, B & J. and Sheet C1.01 Site Plan: It appears the storm 
piping from the building to the new Type B Drainage Inlet has been inadvertently left out 
of the bid documents.  Can a storm piping plan be provided indicating pipe types and 
sizes, clean-outs, etc.? 

A-47) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
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Q-48) Refer to Specification Section Soil Preparation 329113: Is it of the Civil Engineer's 
opinion that on site soils is adequate for new turfs and grasses, therefore, eliminating the 
need to import soils? 

A-48) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-49) Has the bidding documents been reviewed by the WV State Fire Marshall's Office? 
A-49) The bidding documents are currently under review by the WV State Fire Marshal’s 

office.  Any changes required by the WVSFM review will either be issued in a 
subsequent addendum, or addressed via change order, if necessary, with the awarded 
Contractor. 

 
Q-50) Is the Plan Review Letter from the WV State Fire Marshall's available? 
A-50) See A-49 above. 

 
Q-51) Has the City of Point Pleasant reviewed the bidding documents and has the City of Point 

Pleasant issued a plan review letter? 
A-51) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-52) Can the work order for the new electrical service be provided? 
A-52) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-53) Will the Owner be responsible for the associated costs of the Electrical Service work 

order, should the work order not be generated prior to the biding phase? 
A-53) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-54) Can the work order for the new communication service be provided? 
A-54) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-55) Will the Owner be responsible for the associated costs of the Communication Service 

work order, should the work order not be generated prior to the bidding phase? 
A-55) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 

 
Q-56) It is a little concerning when there is a 90 day hold period. Are the funds all already 

available for the construction of this project.  
A-56) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
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Q-57) The Request for Bids state a 90 day hold period. If the project is within the Owner's 
budget, how soon could a Notice of Award be generated? 

A-57) Notice of Award is anticipated in early December 2020 with an anticipated construction 
start date of early January 2021. 

 
Q-58) Are there any Federal monies appropriated for this project, thus, mandating Prevailing 

Wages? 
A-58) Prevailing Wages are not applicable to this project. 

 
Q-59) Review comments below on the Request for Bids: 

 The Work will be substantially completed by August 15, 2021.   Liquidated damages 
shall be $1500.00 per calendar day.  Should the Design Team and Owner take the entire 
90 day bid hold period before awarding the project, this would only give (7) Seven 
Months for Construction. 
Time Line: 
Bid Date: November 20, 2020 
(90) Ninety Possible Hold Period Deadline: February 15, 2021 
Possible On Site Start Date on Submittals: February 15, 2021 
Submittals Schedule: Complete by March 15, 2021 
(125 Normal Work Days Available) Mandatory Substantial Completion Date: August 15, 
2021 
In my opinion this is not enough time to construct a (2) two story building with primarily 
masonry and structural steel.  Are we to include an accelerated schedule costs in our bid 
proposal? 

A-59) See anticipated award and start dates in A-57 above.  Contractor shall bid the project as 
they deem necessary to meet the required schedule. 

 
Q-60) With the short amount of construction days, can the Design Team turn-over Submittals 

within (5) five working days? 
A-60) Submittal review periods shall be as stated in section 013300 Submittal Procedures.  If 

Contractor requests expedited review of individual submittals during construction, every 
attempt will be made by the Design Team to accommodate the request, but no expedited 
reviews shall be guaranteed. 

 
Q-61) With the short amount of construction days, can the Design Team turn-over (RFI's) 

Request for Information within (3) working days? 
A-61) RFI review periods shall be as stated in section 013100 Project Management and 

Coordination.  If Contractor requests expedited review of individual RFI’s during 
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construction, every attempt will be made by the Design Team to accommodate the 
request, but no expedited reviews shall be guaranteed. 

 
Q-62) With the short amount of construction days, can the Design Team attend a preinstallation 

meeting within (24) twenty-four hours notice? 
A-62) Architect’s attendance is not regularly required at preinstallation conferences per section 

013100 Project Management and Coordination.  Should Architect’s attendance be 
required, every attempt will be made to accommodate the request in the requested 
timeframe, but guarantee shall be made. 

 
Q-63) With the short amount of construction days, can the Design Team with all pertinent 

information in hand address a (COP) Change Order Proposal within (24) twenty-four 
hours when the COP is directly impacting the Sequence of Operations? 

A-63) COP’s shall be reviewed in accordance with sections 012600 Contract Modification 
Procedures and A201-2017 (the Agreement).  If Contractor requests expedited review of 
individual COP’s during construction, every attempt will be made by the Design Team to 
accommodate the request, but no expedited reviews shall be guaranteed.  In cases of 
items critical to the Sequence of Operations and the general progress of the construction, 
alternate means such as a Construction Change Directive may be utilized in an attempt to 
not cause undue delay. 

 
Q-64) Refer to Sheet E4.02 & Sheet C1.01: Sheet E4.02 indicates a Transformer Pad Detail, 

however, Sheet C1.01 does not indicate a location.  Will a transformer be required for 
this project? 

A-64) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-65) Refer to Sheet M1.01 & Sheet S103: Sheet M1.01 indicates (3) three RTU's, however, 
Sheet S103 does not show the locations of the structural steel support typical roof unit 
support detail identified on Sheet S503. Should we be concerned with any coordination 
issues with the locations of the RTU's, structural steel and architectural layout below? 

A-65) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-66) Refer to Sheet C1.01 the (50') Fifty linear foot dimension in front of overhead door and 
the (8) pipe bollards: Finishing asphalt around pipe bollards next to a building in hand 
work and does not have a neat appearance. Recommending this area to include a concrete 
apron in lieu of asphalt paving. 

A-66) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
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Q-67) Refer to Sheet C1.01 Pipe Bollard Locations, C2.02 Steel Bollard Detail and Exposed 
Metal Specifications:  Since the pipe bollards has been clearly identified to be painted, is 
there still a need to have them galvanized? 

A-67) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-68) Refer to Specification Section Exposed Aggregate Concrete Finishing 033523 & C1.01:  
The detail legend in front of the museum is the same as the area identified as brick 
pavers.  Where is the exposed aggregate concrete finishing to be installed?  

A-68) Exposed aggregate concrete finishing shall be provided at the main entry of the building 
as indicated on the A-sheets. 

Q-69) Refer to Specification Section Non-Structural Metal Framing 092216: Appears the 
distance from F.F.E. to bottom of second floor deck is about 15'-8".  Is there a concern 
about the distance from the bottom of the second floor deck to the proposed ceiling 
height of 10'-0" for suspended drywall ceilings?  This is about a 5'-8" distance of 
suspension.  Is fastening the Non-Structural Metal Suspended Framing System to the 
bottom of the steel joist system permitted? Will the Stamped Engineered Drawings be 
required for the Non-Structural Metal Framed Suspension Ceiling System? 

A-69) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-70) Refer to Specification Section Cast-in-Place Concrete 033000: Upon reviewing the 
specifications there were no related information pertaining to pouring slab on deck.  
Could specifications be provided that coordinates with the structural steel, steel joist 
framing and metal decking for the second floor? 

A-70) This question will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 

Q-71) For clarification: Wall type 1 does not include in-wall insulation. Is this correct. See wall 
sections on sheet A5.01. 

A-71) Correct.  Wall Type 1 does not include in-wall insulation. 
 

Q-72) Requesting clarification of the following locations are the only Interior Wall Detail 
receiving 1-1/2" Metal Furring. (Wall Type 2). Is this correct? 

A-72) Correct.  Wall Type 2 is the only interior partition type to receive 1-1/2” metal furring.  
Exterior walls also receive 1-1/2” metal furring as detailed in the wall sections. 

 
Q-73) Wall Type 4 indicates to install a 25 Ga. Furring Strip to the Metal Stud. Please clarify 

the following:  What size furring to be used?  Does the door frame wrap the gypsum 
board assembly?  Example: Door 206 has a 5-7/8" throat, however, 3-1/2" + 5/8" + 5/8" = 
4-3/4" plus missing size of furring channel = ?  Refer to Sheet A5.03 Door Detail - 
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Interior Hollow Metal Door: Could a detail be provided to account for the doors in Wall 
Type 4? 

A-73) For Wall Type 4, the furring channel may be omitted.  The assembly shall otherwise be 
as detailed, with an overall thickness of 4-7/8”.  The door frame shall be a slip-on drywall 
type to accommodate the above wall thickness.  

 
Q-74) Referring to stern wheel identified on Sheet A2.01.  Will an actual size stern wheel be 

mounted on the building and who provide and install the stern wheel? 
A-74) The stern wheel shall be part of the building sign and will be representational and of 

approximate scale and dimension depicted on the drawings.  Further detail will be 
provided in a subsequent Addendum. 

 
Q-75) Is there a need to install the 1-1/2" furring a layer of 5/8" gypsum on the perimeter wall 

behind the chase wall in restrooms 103, 104 & 105? 
A-75) No, furring and layer of gypsum on the perimeter may be omitted in the areas indicated. 

 
Q-76) Will the exterior exposed lintels required finish paint or remain galvanized? 
A-76) Exterior exposed lintels shall be galvanized, and finish painted.   

 
Q-77) Refer to domestic water supply to aquarium on Sheet P2.01 Note: P. 1/2" CW DOWN 

TO SERVE AQUARIUM.  This area is an exposed ceiling area. Is it possible to run the 
1/2" supply line underground and up to the aquarium in lieu of the eye sore of running it 
down from the ceiling in an exposed ceiling area? 

A-77) Yes, under-slab routing is acceptable for this purpose in this location. 
 

Q-78) Review elevations for restrooms 104 & 105. Should wall tile have been identified on 
elevation 14/A4.01 similar to elevation 16/A4.01? 

A-78) The area depicted in 14/A4.01 shows the inside of the full-height toilet partition.  No wall 
tile is required in the specific area indicated.  Wall tile shall be provided and installed in 
accordance with A-08 above. 

 
Q-79) Refer to Sheet E4.01:The Electrical Drawings indicate a 20KW Generator. I cannot seem 

to locate the generator on the Civil Plans. Please identify the underground fuel source and 
underground electrical to the building. 

A-79) This questions will be addressed in a subsequent addendum. 
 
 
 
 



  Addendum No. 1 
  November 05, 2020 
  Page 16 of 16 
 

 
 

Q-80) SECTION 083323 Overhead Coiling Doors; 2.2, K, 1: Confirm that clear anodized finish 
is acceptable. 

A-80) Clear anodized finish will not be acceptable.  Overhead coiling door finish shall be either 
color anodized per reference specification section, or factory color finished in color 
selected by Architect from manufacture’s full range, including custom colors. 

 
Q-81) SECTION 102239: 2.6, B: Confirm if marker boards are required.  If so, confirm quantity 

& location. 
A-81) Work surfaces shall not be required in folding panel partitions, nor shall chalk trays. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
THE THRASHER GROUP, INC. 
 

 
 
Josh Lyons 
Architect  





 
 

POINT PLEASANT 
MASON COUNTY, WEST VIRGINIA 

PROPOSED 
POINT PLEASANT RIVER MUSEUM 
THRASHER PROJECT #101-060-10152 

 
PRE-BID CONFERENCE AGENDA 

 
PROJECT LOCATION:  Point Pleasant, WV 
 
ARCHITECTS PROJECT #: 060-10152 
 
DATE OF CONFERENCE: November 2, 2020 at 10:30 am. 
 
CONFERENCE LOCATION: City of Point Pleasant, 400 Viand St., Point Pleasant, WV 

25550 
            
Introductions 

-Kenton Blackwood (The Thrasher Group, Inc.)  
-Josh Lyons (The Thrasher Group, Inc.) 
Owner Introductions  
-Brian Billings – Mayor 
-Amber Tatterson – City Clerk 
-Randy Hall 
 

I. General Project Description 

The Work of Project is defined by the Contract Documents and consists of the following:  
 The approximate quantities of Work to be Bid upon is as described as follows:  

A two-story, 10,000 gross square foot building to house the River Museum and ancillary 
spaces. The structure consists of load-bearing masonry walls with brick veneer and EIFS 
cladding systems, and limited aluminum storefront entry systems. Foundations are concrete 
masonry with reinforced concrete spread footings. Partitions are generally of gypsum board 
and non-structural metal framing. The building incorporates and elevator and metal pan 
stairs for conveyance systems. All utilities and operational systems shall be provided 
including a full sprinkler system, gas and electric mechanical systems, domestic and 
sanitary plumbing systems, lighting, power, and data electrical systems, electronic access 
control, security systems 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

II. Bidding Information 

a. General 

- Substantial Completion:  August 15, 2021 

- Final Completion:  14 Calendar Days Thereafter 

- Bids are due on November 20, 2020 @ 1:00 pm at City Offices. Bids will be opened 

and read publicly. 

- Liquidated Damages are set at $1500/Per Day.   

- Bidding Documents issued as hard copy drawings and hard copy specifications are 
available for $100 per set.  
Electronic sets of Bidding Documents may be obtained from QuestCDN.com for 
$15.00 per set via the following link: 
https://qap.questcdn.com/qap/projects/prj_browse/ipp_browse_grid.html?projType=al
l&provider=5828748&group=5828748.  
  
b. Bid Opening Requirements (Pay attention to full list) 

c. Bidding Information 

-A two envelope system will be used.  
 
-Envelope No. 1 must have the following information presented on the front:  
Name and address of Bidder  
Bid on Point Pleasant River Museum  
Received by City of Point Pleasant  
 
-Envelope No. 2 labeled “Bid Proposal” shall also be placed inside of Envelope #1.  
 
-Envelope No. 1 will be opened first and the Bid Opening Requirement items checked for 
compliance as outlined on the Bid Opening Checklist on page BOR - 1 of these contract 
documents. If such documents are found to be in order, Envelope No. 2 “Bid Proposal”, will 
then be opened and will be publicly read aloud. If the documents required to be contained in 
Envelope No. 1 are not in order, Envelope No. 2 “Bid Proposal” will not be opened and the 
Bid will be considered non-responsive and will be returned to the Bidder.  
 
-A Bidder may not withdraw his Bid for a period of sixty (60) days after the date set for the 
opening of Bids.  
 
-Bids shall be accompanied by a Bid Bond payable to the City of Point Pleasant, for an 
amount equal to five percent (5%) of the base Bid.  
 

https://qap.questcdn.com/qap/projects/prj_browse/ipp_browse_grid.html?projType=all&provider=5828748&group=5828748
https://qap.questcdn.com/qap/projects/prj_browse/ipp_browse_grid.html?projType=all&provider=5828748&group=5828748


 
 

-Bidders must hold a current West Virginia contractor’s license on the date of Bid Opening.  
 
-Bids received after the scheduled closing time for the reception of Bids will be returned 
unopened to the Bidders.  
 
-City of Point Pleasant reserves the right to reject any and all Bids.  

-Method of Award – Award will be made off of total base bid.    

III. B & O Taxes – Verify w/ Owner 

IV. Building Permit – Verify w/ Owner  

V. Addressing Questions 

- All questions that wish to be answered via addendum must be submitted in writing to 
architect/ engineer, our contact information is above. Any questions not submitted in 
writing will not be addressed via addendums and are at the risk of the contractor to 
include in the bid pricing. 

-  
VI. Addendum  

- After today’s pre-bid meeting we will issue addendum #1 with a copy of today’s sign 
in sheet. Any questions that are submitted after today’s meeting will be addressed in 
addendum #2. We ask that all final questions to be addressed by addendum be 
submitted by 4 PM on November 12th, so that we may finalize and format to be sent 
out.    

-  
- All questions need sent to Josh Lyons and Lori Providenti – 

lprovidenti@thethrashergroup.com   
 

VII. Owner Comments 

VIII. Question and Answer Session 

IX. Site Visit 

mailto:lprovidenti@thethrashergroup.com
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